

Educational Trips and Visits Policy Date: March 2024

Headteacher: Carly Wilkins

Due for review: Spring Term 2026

Page 0 of 28 March 2024

Policy and Procedures for the organisation of off-site activities.

Contents

- 1. Introduction
- 2. Policy (including Roles and Responsibilities)
- 3. Procedures and Guidance
 - 3.1 Planning the Visit
 - 3.2 Application procedure
 - 3.3 Risk Assessments
 - 3.4 During the Visit
 - 3.5 Evaluating the Visit
 - 3.6 Residential Visits
 - 3.7 Overseas Visits
 - 3.8 Outdoor Activities
 - 3.9 Charging for Activities
 - 3.10 Emergency planning
 - 3.11 Insurance
 - 3.12 Risk Assessments: Good Practice and exemplars
 - 3.13 Further Sources of Information

Appendix:

- A: Visit Timeline/Checklist
- **B: EV1 External Visits Application/Approval Form**
- **C: Parent Consent/Medical Form**
- D: Visit Guidance for staff
- E: Examples of Category A, B and C trips
- F: Key to relevant postholders

Page 1 of 28 March 2024

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Educational trips and visits are an important part of a student's experience. A carefully planned school trip can bring a subject to life and add relevance to classroom theory. Such visits are often the most memorable parts of life. Educational visits can help to develop a student's investigative, planning and inter-personal skills and longer visits in particular encourage greater independence. Organising and participating in such visits can also be very rewarding for staff.

However, organising an activity which involves taking students off-site carries with it extra responsibilities, especially for the health and safety of students. There are also issues of cost and implications for potential disruption to the school routine. The member of staff in charge of the activity must plan carefully so that students can learn from the experience in safety.

This policy, and guidance on procedures, is designed to help teachers to arrange trips and visits which are well-organised, safe and educationally valuable.

The next section, **Policy**, describes the steps which must be taken for all school trips and visits organised within the school.

The following sections, **Procedures and Guidance**, cover various aspects of organising trips and visits. You should make sure that you are familiar with the relevant sections. This document cannot contain all the specialist guidance that may be necessary for some educational visits. All **Visit Leaders** must have attended a meeting with the Head and/or the Educational Visits Co-ordinator prior to a visit to go through the risk assessment and details of the trip.

The **Appendices** contain examples and master copies of the appropriate paperwork that you should use when running a school trip.

2.0 POLICY

Educational Value

The opportunity to participate in educational visits is an important and desirable part of the education of our students. Educational visits can enrich and extend the experience we offer to students. However, organising and running successful visits can be an expensive and time-consuming activity. Visits are potentially disruptive to the normal routine of the school. Therefore, it is important that all visits have clearly stated aims and learning objectives.

Health and Safety

The Health and Safety of students and staff on any visit must be the first priority of those involved; the *Educational Visits Coordinator (EVC)*, the *Visit Leader (VL)* and any staff accompanying the visit.

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999, employers are responsible for the health, safety and welfare at work of their employees. Employers are also under a duty to ensure, so far as is reasonably practicable, the health and safety of anyone else on the premises or anyone who may be affected by their activities. This includes all participants in off-site visits. The Board of Trustees is the employer.

Staff who are acting "in loco parentis" have a duty of care whether the activities happen in or out of school hours, whether the students are on or off the school premises.

Page 2 of 28 March 2024

Equal Opportunities

Every effort must be made to make all educational visits accessible to all students who are qualified to attend and who are interested in participating. Care must be taken to ensure that students are not discriminated against because of their financial circumstances, gender, race or physical capabilities. The opinions and wishes of parents/carers must be taken into account.

Procedures

The procedures that are outlined on the following pages are designed to ensure that staff and students on an educational visit have a safe and rewarding experience. These procedures **must** be complied with.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board of Trustees

The Board of Trustees has overall responsibility for the health and safety and welfare of school staff and students. In the context of educational visits this involves the need to;

- Provide written guidelines for the Headteacher and teachers, as set out in this policy.
- Assess proposals for residential, overseas, non-local (that is beyond 50 miles) and potentially hazardous
 activities. Potentially hazardous activities include water sports, climbing, caving, abseiling, hill-walking,
 skiing and other adventure activities;
- Provide an emergency SLT telephone contact for the duration of the visit where necessary;
- Ensure that training needs have been addressed;
- Provide access to named staff for advice;
- Maintain appropriate insurance cover;
- Have in place procedures to monitor and review safety during off-site visits and activities.

The Board of Trustees has delegated responsibility for authorising Category A visits to the HT and Category B visits to the HT and CoG or a nominated governor. (See Appendix J for examples of Category A and B trips).

The Headteacher

The Headteacher should ensure that visits comply with regulations and guidelines provided by the Board of Trustees through this policy. (See the Trust's Health and Safety Policy). The Headteacher should ensure that the Educational Visits Coordinator is competent to fulfill the role and that adequate training is given to keep the EVC up to date with relevant regulations.

The Headteacher (through the EVC) should ensure that the Visit Leader is competent to monitor the risks throughout the visit. (The Headteacher should be clear about their own role if taking part in the visit as a group member/supervisor. He/She should follow the instructions of the Visit Leader who will have sole charge of the visit.)

The Educational Visits Co-ordinator

The *Educational Visits Co-ordinator* (EVC) is appointed by, and works in conjunction with, the Headteacher. The EVC is involved in the planning and management of all educational visits that are led by school staff.

The general functions of the EVC are as follows:

- To liaise with the Visit Leader to ensure that the educational visit meets the school's requirements, including those of risk assessments.
- To support the Head and Governors with approval and other decisions.

Page 3 of 28 March 2024

- To check that all necessary actions have been completed before the visit begins.
- To check that the preliminary risk assessment has been completed and appropriate safety measures are in place.
- To ensure that the Visit Leader has experience in supervising the age groups going on the visit and will organise the group effectively.
- To check that the Visit Leader or another teacher is suitably competent to instruct the activity and is familiar with the location/centre where the activity will take place.
- To ensure that competent people are assigned to supervise a visit.
- To organise the training of leaders and other adults going on a visit.
- To ensure that Disclosure and Barring Service certificates are in place as necessary.
- To ensure that Visit Leaders
 - Provide full details of the visit beforehand so that parents can consent or refuse consent on a fully informed basis.
 - Obtain the consent or refusal of parents.
- To keep records of individual visits including
 - o Reports of accidents and 'near-accidents'.
- To review systems (including a review of risk) and, on occasions, monitor practice.

The EVC must also check that;

- The Visit Leader has made arrangements for the dietary medical and/or special educational needs of all the students.
- Adequate first-aid provision will be available.
- The mode of travel is appropriate.
- Travel times out and back are known, including pick-up and drop-off points.
- There is adequate and relevant insurance cover.
- They have the address and phone number of the visit's venue.
- A school contact has been nominated (this may be the Headteacher) and the Visit Leader has details.
- Non-teacher supervisors on the visit are appropriate people to supervise children.
- That the ratio of supervisors to students is appropriate.
- The Governors have approved the visit, if appropriate.
- The Visit Leader, group supervisors and nominated school contact have a copy of the agreed emergency procedures.
- The Visit Leader, group supervisors and nominated school contact have the names of all the adults and students travelling in the group, and the contact details of parents and the teachers' and other supervisors' next of kin.
- There is a contingency plan for any delays including a late return home.

The Visit Leader

There should always be one member of staff, **the Visit Leader (VL)**, who has overall responsibility for the supervision and conduct of the visit and should have regard to the health and safety of the group. The Visit Leader should have been appointed or approved by the EVC on behalf of the Headteacher.

The Visit Leader should:

- Obtain the HT's prior agreement before any off-site visit takes place.
- Follow governing body regulations, guidelines and policies.
- Appoint a deputy where appropriate.
- Clearly define each supervising adult's role and ensure that all tasks have been assigned and ensure all staff are aware of the risk assessments.
- Be capable of controlling and leading students of the relevant age range.

Page 4 of 28 March 2024

- Be suitably competent to instruct students in the relevant activity and be familiar with the location/centre where the activity will take place.
- Be aware of child protection issues.
- Ensure that adequate first-aid provision will be available.
- Undertake and complete the planning and preparation of the visit, including the briefing of group members and parents.
- Undertake and complete a comprehensive risk assessment using the school proforma or the EEC system and submit these to the EVC.
- Review the activity (annually for regularly undertaken visits/activities) and advise the EVC and Headteacher where adjustments may be necessary.
- Ensure that teachers and other supervisors are fully aware of what the proposed visit involves.
- Have enough information on the students proposed for the visit to assess their suitability or be satisfied that their suitability has been assessed and confirmed.
- Ensure the ratio of supervisors to students is appropriate for the needs of the group.
- Consider stopping the visit if the risk to the health or safety of the students is unacceptable and have in place procedures for such an eventuality.
- Ensure all staff take responsibility for overseeing appropriate behaviour, rewards and sanction of students.
- Ensure for all residential trips abroad that parents and students sign a code of conduct form.
- Ensure all parents are fully informed of arrangements and, for trips abroad, the VL must hold a parent/student meeting prior to departure.
- Submit a list of students they intend to take to the SLT member responsible for KS3/KS4 for checking before any students or parents are informed they have a place on the trip.
- Ensure that group supervisors have details of the school contact.
- Ensure that group supervisors and the school contact have a copy of the emergency procedures.
- Ensure that the group's teachers and other supervisors have the details of students' special educational or medical needs which will be necessary for them to carry out their tasks effectively.
- Observe the guidance set out for teachers and other adults below.
- Liaise with other Subject Leaders to ensure that students' withdrawal from lessons does not impact on exams or controlled assessment.

Teachers

Teachers on school-led visits are acting in the course of their employment, whether the visit takes place within normal hours or outside those hours, by agreement with the Headteacher and Governors. Teachers must do their best to ensure the health and safety of everyone in the group and act as any reasonable parent would do in the same circumstances.

They should;

- Follow the instructions of the Visit Leader and help with control and discipline;
- Consider stopping the visit or the activity, notifying the Visit Leader, if they think the risk to the health or safety of the students in their charge is unacceptable.

Adult Volunteers

Non-teacher adults on the visit should be clear about their roles and responsibilities during the visit.

Non-teacher adults acting as supervisors must:

- Do their best to ensure the health and safety of everyone in the group.
- Not be left in sole charge of students except where it has been previously agreed as part of the risk assessment.
- Follow the instructions of the Visit Leader and teacher supervisors and help with control and discipline.

Page 5 of 28 March 2024

• Speak to the Visit Leader or teacher supervisors if concerned about the health or safety of students at any time during the visit.

Parents

Parents should be able to make an informed decision on whether their child should go on the visit. The Visit Leader should ensure that parents are given sufficient information in writing and are invited to any briefing sessions. The Visit Leader should also tell parents how they can help prepare their child for the visit by, for example, reinforcing the visit's code of conduct. Parents should also be asked to agree the arrangements for sending a student home early and who will meet the cost. (Usually this will be the insurance in the case of illness or injury, and the parents in any case where a student has contravened the code of conduct)

Special arrangements may be necessary to inform parents for whom English is a second language.

Parents will need to:

- Provide the Visit Leader with emergency contact number(s).
- Sign the parental consent and medical forms.
- Give the Visit Leader information about their child's emotional, psychological and physical health which might be relevant to the visit (usually by means of the appropriate form).
- Ensure their child is adequately prepared and equipped for the trip in line with the information given by the VL.

Students

The Visit Leader should make it clear to students that they must:

- Not take unnecessary risks.
- Follow the instructions of the leader and other supervisors including those at the venue of the visit.
- Dress and behave sensibly and responsibly.
- If abroad, be sensitive to local codes and customs.
- Look out for anything that might hurt or threaten themselves or anyone in the group and tell the Visit Leader or supervisor about it.

Any students whose behaviour may be considered to be a danger to themselves or to the group **may be stopped from going on the visit**, or if necessary, and possible, sent home early. The curricular aims of the visit for these students should be fulfilled in other ways wherever possible.

Students, whose poor behaviour compromises either Health and Safety, or the reputation of the school, may be refused permission to join other educational visits.

3.0 PROCEDURES AND GUIDANCE

3.1 Planning the Visit

Thorough planning is essential if the educational activity is going to be a success.

3.2 **Application Procedure**

At an early stage in planning the educational visit you should discuss the arrangements with the EVC. You will need to know the answers to the following questions:

- What are the intended learning outcomes?
- Say whether the visit is essential, desirable or recommended.
- Which groups of students will be involved?
- What are the likely dates? And duration?

Page 6 of 28 March 2024

- How many staff will be needed? (See Guidance on levels of supervision below)
- Estimate of costs?

Approval must be sought at least one term in advance although in exceptional circumstances this can be commuted at HT's discretion.

Visits are not automatically agreed.

Guidance on Levels of Supervision

There must always be at least two supervising adults, however small the party, so that adequate supervision can be maintained in the case of emergency. An exception to this rule is for some routine visits, e.g. sports fixtures, where a single member of staff may be sufficient as long as suitable contingency plans are in place (in case of emergency, vehicle breakdown etc). Approval from the EVC is required in every case.

For all visits in the UK there should be a **minimum** ratio of 1 staff to every 12 students.

The level of supervision depends on the nature of the activity, and a higher ratio of staff to students may be deemed necessary when a risk assessment is completed.

For Category B trips the ratio should be 1:10-12.

Parental Consent

Parental consent must be received for all students attending any off-site activities. A letter should be written informing parents of the purpose and nature of the visit.

Any students without parental consent are not to go on the visit.

Visit Leaders must ensure they have the relevant parental consent for the category of trip. **Students are not allowed to attend offsite visits without this.**

For residential visits, it is necessary to hold a parents' briefing meeting so that parents can be fully informed about the visit. During the meeting, staff must go through the risk assessment and allow parents to read it, if they wish to do so.

3.3 Risk Assessments

Before you decide to arrange an educational visit, it is good practice to consider what educational objectives you wish to achieve, and then, how a visit might help to achieve them. If the visit is the best means of achieving those aims, a <u>Risk Assessment must be carried out</u>.

Risk assessment and risk management are legal requirements. For educational visits they involve the careful examination of what could cause harm during the visit and whether enough precautions have been taken or whether more should be done.

In practice, risk assessments, which employers are legally required to do, are led by the **Visit Leader**, **but** all staff have a responsibility to contribute to the risk assessment as necessary. A preliminary assessment should be completed well before the visit, and submitted to the EVC and the Headteacher. The assessment should be reviewed, and revised as necessary, before and during the trip. A **RISK PROMPT list is available** on EEC. This is a list of some of the risks which may be encountered on educational visits.

Page 7 of 28 March 2024

This is not a comprehensive list. It is intended as an aid to planning and cannot serve as a full risk assessment, which is likely to vary for each visit, depending on the location and the nature of the student group.

The primary aim of the risk assessment is to ensure that no one gets hurt or becomes ill. When risks are identified, control measures need to be put in place to remove or reduce the risk. The control measures should be understood by those involved. Some control measures may be assigned to a specific member of staff, e.g. a named member of staff may be responsible for regular roll calls, to reduce the risk of losing students.

Where necessary, risk assessments should explicitly cover how special educational needs and medical needs are to be addressed. The programme of a visit, as set out in the risk assessment and the consent form, should not normally be deviated from and should include details of contingency measures – i.e. you should have a plan B, if things go wrong.

The Health & Safety Executive has produced a leaflet "5 Steps to Risk Assessment" as a simple guide. You should refer to this. The link is http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/indg163.pdf

STEP 1: Look for the hazards

STEP 2: Decide who might be harmed and how

STEP 3: Evaluate the risks and decide whether the existing precautions are adequate or whether more should be done

STEP 4: Record your findings

STEP 5: Review your assessment and revise it if necessary

Risk assessment for educational visits can be usefully considered as having three levels:

- **Generic activity risk assessments**, which are likely to apply to the activity wherever and whenever it takes place;
- Visit/site specific risk assessments which will differ from place to place and group to group; and
- **Ongoing risk assessments** that take account of, for example, illness of staff or students, changes of weather, availability of preferred activity.

The school Risk Assessment form is a vital part of planning for an educational visit. Further advice on completing the Risk Assessment form is available on the EEC risk assessment section or from the EVC.

There are standard risk assessments for coach/mini bus and ferry travel available through EEC or via the EVC.

A formal assessment of the risks that might be met on a visit should have the aim of preventing the risks or reducing them. Students must not be placed in situations which expose them to an unacceptable level of risk. Safety must always be the prime consideration. If the risks cannot be contained then the visit must not take place.

Your risk assessment should be based on the following considerations:

- What are the hazards?
- Who might be affected by them?

Page 8 of 28 March 2024

- What safety measures need to be in place to reduce risks to an acceptable level?
- Can the Visit Leader put the safety measures in place?
- What steps will be taken in an emergency?

The person carrying out the risk assessment should record it and give copies to all teachers/supervisors on the visit, with details of the measures they should/could take to avoid or reduce the risks.

The EVC should also be given a copy so that approval can be given with a clear understanding that effective planning has taken place.

For residential visits, or those involving potentially hazardous activities, copies of the risk assessment will be made available to the Headteacher and Governors. The VL should also be prepared to answer any concerns parents may raise at briefings/following letters with information.

Frequent visits to local venues such as swimming pools may not need a risk assessment every time. Nevertheless, it is essential not to become complacent. A generic assessment of the risks of such visits should be made at regular intervals, and careful monitoring should take place.

The Visit Leader and other supervisors should monitor the risks throughout the visit and take appropriate action as necessary. (H&S and DBS checks, policy of venue/nature of activities etc).

3.4 **During the Visit**

The **Visit Leader (VL)** is responsible for safe conduct of the educational visits. The VL should deploy supporting staff and other adults, as necessary, to ensure the safety of all those on the visit.

In normal circumstances the Visit Leader should adhere to the published itinerary for the visit as detailed to parents and agreed with the EVC. However, if circumstances change such that it may be unsafe to continue, the Visit Leader must adapt the programme as necessary. The VL should consider whether changes to the risk assessment are necessary.

The VL should be able to contact the school, or have an emergency contact for a senior member of staff, if the trip is likely to be out of school office hours. If the trip is out of hours, the VL should have an emergency contact number and medical details for each student.

The VL and other supervising adults should monitor the students' behaviour and ensure that it is appropriate for health and safety requirements and to maintain the good name of the school.

Students should wear school uniform for educational visits, unless otherwise agreed with the Headteacher before the trip.

When on duty, staff must not drink alcohol.

Behaviour

It is important, for the health and safety of all concerned, as well as for educational reasons, that students' behaviour on an educational visit is beyond reproach. For residential visits, parents should sign a permission/medical form before leaving. Where behaviour does not meet expectations, supervising staff must intervene. If behaviour is especially poor, or compromises the health and safety of others, the student/s should be closely supervised and may be sent home from a residential visit at the parents' expense (provided that safe arrangements can be made to do so). Students who behave badly on a visit may be refused permission to attend such trips in the future. All inappropriate behaviour must be

Page 9 of 28 March 2024

reported to the Headteacher immediately on return to school.

3.5 Evaluating the Visit

After the visit, the EVC/Visit Leader, with accompanying staff if appropriate, should evaluate the educational visit in terms of:

- The learning outcomes
- Value for money
- Any safety/behavioural issues which arose.

3.6 Residential Visits

The accommodation must be suitable for the group. In particular it must meet fire regulations and the staff of any hotel/hostel must be checked as being suitable for work with young people. If possible, the Visit Leader should visit the accommodation in advance, to check its suitability.

Levels of supervision may need to be as high as 1 member of staff to 10 students. If it is a mixed group, it is desirable to have **at least** one male and one female teacher.

3.7 Outdoor Activities

When planning any adventure activities with a commercial company, it is important that the Visit Leader checks that a license is held, valid for each activity. Staff who are not risk assessed and cleared through the DBS system will need to be cleared (follow the wizard). This clearance can take some time so leave sufficient time for this to happen.

Staff leading outdoor activities must possess an appropriate and up to date first aid certificate.

3.8 Charging for Activities

Part of planning for a successful visit involves making sure that expenses can be met. This is usually done from parental contributions. The school office/Finance Office will set up a ParentPay account heading for the visit. All costings to be agreed by the school office/Finance Office – VL to liaise with the Business Manager/Finance Officer re quotes for tickets/transport etc. Staff should not take any money for the trip personally. Payment should be made via ParentPay.

Parents should be informed of the costs of the visit and any arrangements and deadlines for paying. Contributions for activities within school time are voluntary, though if parents choose not to pay, the visit may have to be cancelled.

3.9 Emergency planning

Supervisors in charge of students during a visit have a duty of care to make sure that students remain safe and healthy. They also have a common law duty to act as a reasonably prudent parent would. Teachers should not hesitate to act in the case of an emergency.

If an accident happens:

- Assess the situation
- Safeguard the uninjured members of the group
- Attend to the casualty
- Inform emergency services and everyone who needs to know about the accident.

The Visit Leader will take charge and inform the school contact. The school contact's main responsibility is to link the group with school and parents and to provide assistance where necessary. The school contact

Page 10 of 28 March 2024

should have all the necessary information about the visit.

3.10 Insurance

The School has an annual travel insurance plan which covers most activities. Check with the EVC who can provide a schedule for teachers and parents if required, as well as contact numbers in case of emergency. Full details are on the school website.

3.11 Risk Assessments: Good Practice and Exemplars

Generic Activity Risk Assessments

Risk assessments for common activities are available from the EVC.

School staff will not normally prepare generic risk assessments unless they have accumulated specific experience or other expertise. The *Visit Leader and EVC* should check any generic risk assessment prepared externally (by, for example, an activity or expedition provider, tour operator, or National Governing Body).

Examples:

- The lack of adequate risk management leading to drowning is a major cause of accidental death.
 Control measures would include assessing the water confidence and ability of students; use of
 buoyancy aids; competent supervision, with the appropriate ratios for the specific environment,
 pupil group and level of activity. The generic risk assessment should include advice, or a local
 ruling, on the circumstances in which swimming or paddling may or may not be permitted (see A
 Handbook for Visit Leaders)
- Travel entails a risk of injury in a road traffic accident. Control measures would include qualified driver; number of drivers; maximum periods of driving; appropriate seat belts provided and worn; evidence of vehicle maintenance, appropriate supervision levels; and, if appropriate, knowledge of foreign law, experience of driving abroad and with left-side controls.
- Adventure activities. Centres licensed under the adventure activities licensing regulations 1996
 can be considered safe in the leading, instructing and equipping of the activities stipulated on the
 licence. These will have been inspected. There should be no need to risk assess that part of any
 visit. You will wish to assess other aspects of the visit for example, accommodation, catering,
 transport, activities not stipulated on the licence. For non-licensable adventure activities, proof
 of competence from a National Governing Body (NGB) award or assessment by a technical adviser
 may be sufficient.

Risk assessors should apply lessons learned from relevant serious incidents, accidents or near-accidents which have occurred locally or nationally. At times it may be necessary to refer to other sources of outdoor education advice. This might be from the Premises Manager within the School or from an adviser or suitably qualified consultant (EEC).

Visit/Site Specific Risk Assessment

These are usually undertaken by the school for each venue and are amended as necessary for different groups. They should be prepared or agreed by someone trained and competent to assess risks, such as the **EVC**, or experienced or trained **Visit Leader**.

Visit/Site specific risk assessments should inform school-based policies and procedures.

Examples:

 Medical needs of students. Control measures include ensuring the Visit Leader is aware of the known health problems of the group; sufficient medication is provided; there are sufficient adults

Page 11 of 28 March 2024

- competent in dealing with the medical problems in the group; and there are contingency measures in place for the group to be adequately supervised if an adult has to accompany a child to hospital;
- Behaviour of students. Control measures include a code of rules and behaviour, agreed as far as
 practicable with students; rules for supervision (including model behaviour and example set by
 adults); and competence of supervisors to ensure disciplinary standards;
- Weather etc. Control measures include obtaining local intelligence of tides; potential for flooding
 or flash floods; likelihood of sudden weather changes in mountains; streams that can change from
 benign to torrents in a short time etc.; planning the itinerary to take the possibility of change into
 account; suitable clothing; ensure students understand the risks and the reasons for the control
 measures, and having a plan B pre-assessed in case plan A has become too hazardous;
- Crossing roads, railways, rivers etc. Control measures include local intelligence; information on where the controlled or otherwise less dangerous crossing places are; ensuring appropriate levels of supervision and that students are aware of, and comply with, rules;
- Group management decisions. Control measures include establishing meeting and collecting points; code of rules and behaviour agreements; cultural considerations such as dress codes, holy days; induction requirements for support staff etc.
- Staff who are not risk assessed and cleared through the DBS system will need to be cleared (follow the wizard) and sufficient time will be needed to achieve this clearance. This can take some time.

Ongoing Risk Assessments and Reassessments

The Visit Leader, or other adults with responsibility, should reassess risks while the visit is taking place. Ongoing risk assessments normally consist of judgements and decisions made as the need arises. They should be informed by the generic and visit or site-specific risk assessments and take account of local expertise on e.g. tides, potential for flooding etc. They are not usually recorded until after the visit and should be reviewed to inform future planning. Examples of the need for ongoing risk assessment:

- Changing weather, tiredness or illness within the group, behaviour, issues with other groups at same
 venue etc. Control measures would often include deciding to change to the pre-assessed plan B or
 swapping activities on the itinerary so that the activity can be carried out on a different day.
- Emergencies. Control measures would include establishing the nature and extent of the emergency as quickly as possible; ensuring that all the group are safe and looked after; establishing whether anyone has been hurt and getting immediate medical attention for them; ensuring that all group members who need to know are aware of the incident and that all group members are following the emergency procedures; ensuring that if a teacher accompanies casualties to hospital, the rest of the group is adequately supervised at all times and kept together; and informing the emergency contact in the school;
- Visit Leaders are always in charge. They should trust their own knowledge of the young people and use their own professional judgement. This may include challenging an activity leader where the Visit Leader's knowledge of the group is superior, or intervening to prompt a change of plan, including stopping an activity if it has become too hazardous.

Exploratory Visits

It is good practice for a Visit Leader to undertake a preliminary visit. In the case of a residential visit, or where potentially hazardous activities are to take place, it may be essential so that the risks can be fully assessed. The visit will enable the Visit Leader to gain first-hand knowledge of the area and route. This knowledge will then inform the risk assessment and pre-planning.

An exploratory visit will give the Visit Leader greater confidence in his or her ability to supervise the pupils. It will help the Visit Leader to concentrate on the needs of the group rather than the unexpected demands of the environment.

If it is not possible to visit the site beforehand, the EVC, Head and Governors will want to be satisfied that

Page 12 of 28 March 2024

alternative arrangements are sufficient for an assessment to be made. Such alternatives might include obtaining advice from those with experience gained from previous visits; heeding reports of previous visits; reliance on tour operators; the use of experienced and reliable local guides where appropriate; a reconnaissance visit by the Visit Leader on arrival at the venue whilst the group remain in the hotel or hostel on residential visits.

3.12 Further Sources of Information

There is a wealth of experience and expertise in school. The EVC can give advice, or put you in touch with the appropriate member of staff. It may be that for some staff, or for specific activities, further training is required.

March 2024

Page **13** of **28**

Wellesley Park Primary School EXTERNAL VISIT TIMELINE

Visit Destination	
Date of Visit	

Visit Leader Procedure - following outline approval from CW

	Deadline Date w/c	Tick
ALL VISITS		
EV1 form submitted to Headteacher for approval – refer to External Visit		
guidance		
(at least 4 weeks prior to visit)		
Copy of signed EV1 form given to AM. To be added to calendar/diary dates.		
EEC website Visit Plan completed https://www.eeclive.co.uk/swi		
Day Visits - at least 2 weeks prior to visit		
Residential Visits – at least 3 weeks prior to visit		
Request risk assessments from venue		
(at least 3 weeks prior to visit)		
Request standard risk assessments from AM		
(at least 3 weeks prior to visit)		
Timetable and arrangements for children not on visit documented and copies		
shared with parents/given to supervising staff and AM		
(at least 1 week prior to visit)		
Timetable to include core subject consolidation work/a mini project/PE		
provision		
Deposits/payments checked at school office and, if not received, parents		
contacted to secure commitment of child's participation in visit. Deadline		
for decision given.		
(3 days before deposit/payment deadline)		
Staff signed risk assessment confirmation sheet returned to office		
(at least school day prior to visit)		
Visit bag to be prepared by office and passed to visit leader		
(at least school day prior to visit)		
DAY VISITS ONLY		
Detailed letter sent to parents and copy to AM - to include itinerary/lunch		
arrangements, cost, mode of transport/coach provider, staff attending and		
consent form/coat, bottle etc Cost to be calculated with JL		
(2-3 weeks prior to visit)		
Follow up letter to parents and copy to AM - with further information if		
required		
(1 week prior to visit)		
Individual risk assessments submitted to SENDCo for approval and signed		
copy to AM		
(2 weeks prior to visit)		
Must be shared with parents/participating staff following approval		
RESIDENTIAL VISITS ONLY		
Detailed letter sent to parents and copy to AM - to include itinerary, cost		

Page 14 of 28 March 2024

with payment plan, mode of transport/coach provider, staff attending,	
together with kit list	
(6 months prior to visit)	
Second letter with activity list (kit list) to follow as soon as information	
available	
Subsequent letters as required	
Individual risk assessments submitted to SENDco for approval and signed	
copy to AM	
(3 weeks prior to visit)	
Must be shared with parents/participating staff following approval	
Template final letter with final instructions, together with Medical	
Information Consent form, sent to parents and copy letter to AM – parents	
must be aware of all activities before signing this consent form. Include	
booking of packed lunch at school for FSM if required.	
On receipt of form, where there are any medication requirements, parents	
must be given an Administering Medicine form to return with medication	
where necessary	
(2 weeks prior to visit)	
Consent form/Administering Medicine form must be taken on visit	

$\underline{Check\ List}- \text{office use only}$

EV1 form/copy letter to parents received	
Transport booked	
Visit uploaded to ParentPay if required	
All payments received	
Venue risk assessments received	
Signed individual risk assessments received	
EEC approval granted	
Residential visit Chair of Governor approval received	
Residential visit OEA approval received	
Copy timetable and arrangements made for children not on visit/copy letter to parents both received	
Staff signed risk assessment confirmation sheet received	
Review of visit undertaken	

Page 15 of 28 March 2024

Appendix B EV1 External Visits Application/Approval Form

SIEY ARANA WP

Maik London			WP
Visit Leader:			
Visit Title:			
CATEGORY OF VISIT (please pl	ut 'Yes' in oi	ne of the boxes) $oldsymbol{A}$	B DofE
Place(s) of visit:			
Purpose of visit:			
Departure: Date:		Time:	
From:		Time:	
Return: Date:		Time:	
То:			
Transport arrangements (includi			1.1.21.
Transport arrangements (mendar	ing arry train	isport company (acturis).
Number of participants (being ta	akon): M	ale: Fem	vale: Total:
Number of participants (being ta	aken). Ivid	ale. reili	lale. Total.
Age range:			
Number of adults: Staff,	/participan	nt ratio (from risk	assessment):
Full names of all adults in the group (Continue on separate sheet if needed)	Male or Female	Status in the establishment	Responsibility during visit (leader etc), relevant experience (first aid, driver, any training/qualifications etc)
			Trip Leader
	_		First Aider
			Any SEN support
	<u> </u>		
Are you using an independent pr	ovider?		(please enter 'Yes' or 'No')

Page **16** of **28 March 2024**

Name of organisation:	Tel no:
Address:	
Website:	
Contact name:	Email address:
24 hour emergency contact details/arrangement	ents (names, telephone numbers etc)
Visit Leader's mobile number (school mobile)	School contact number (day trips) or SLT member for trips out of school hours:
Insurance arrangements:	
Do you have appropriate and adequate insurar (Please enter 'Yes' or 'No')	nce for the trip/activities?
Is there up to date and appropriate risk manag (Please enter 'Yes' or 'No')	ement in place for the trip/activities?
recorded/evidenced that the health & safety aspect participants with individual needs (SEN, Medical, L.) The School expects all employees who have be responsible for them. If a phone is lost, stolen Manager. Staff must ensure that communication	is external visit utilising the appropriate safe practice guidance and has ts of planning have been completed. <i>Consideration has been given to any Disability).</i> een allocated a mobile phone for use on trips, to take care and be or broken it should be reported immediately to the Business on or conduct linked to the device is appropriate and professional duct, Mobile Phone policy and ICT Usage Policy
Signed:	(Visit Leader)
Date:	
Print Name:	
The EVC has checked that the planning and procede been created	ures are appropriate for the visit to proceed and that a visit record/file has
Signed:	(EVC) Date:
Print Name:	
<u>ine Head/Senior Manager</u> confirms that the visit fo	ollows the appropriate safe practice guidance and approves the visit
Signed:	(Head/Senior Manager)
Date:	
Print Name:	

Page 17 of 28 March 2024

* Please note that the **delegation of final approval for Cat 'A' visits** from the Chair of Governors to the Headteacher needs to be confirmed in writing. This applies to the equivalent in other organisations. Further details are shown on the Outdoor Education & External Visits website.

For <u>all Category</u> 'B' external visits/activities additional approval for the visit is required from the Chair of Governors (or their equivalent).

The Chair of Governors (or equivalent) corthe visit complies with this policy and othe	ofirms on behalf of the school/establishment that the planning and preparation for relevant guidance. This visit is approved .
Signed:	_(Chair of School Governors or Equivalent)
Date:	
Print Name:	
Visit Leaders are clear about coin Need.	urrent needs for any Child Protection children or Children

A hard copy of this completed form must be printed off, signed by all relevant staff and then held on file centrally by the school/establishment.

TRAVEL INSURANCE CONTACT DETAILS:

DfE – Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA)

The Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA) is a voluntary arrangement for academies and free schools. It is an alternative to insurance through which the cost of risks that materialise will be covered by government funds.

24 Hour Emergency Phone Number: 0203 475 5031

Policy Number: 136916

Page 3 of 5

Page 18 of 28 March 2024

Itinerary - PLEASE INCLUDE LUNCH ARRANGEMENTS WHERE APPLICABLE

Date/Time?	What?	Where?	

Page 4 of 5

March 2024

Pupil/Supervisors Groups - Please discuss LSA usage/SEN requirements with SENCO Identify children requiring risk assessments

Pupil Name	Pupil Needs	Group Supervisor

Page 5 of 5

Page 20 of 28 March 2024

WELLESLEY PARK PRIMARY SCHOOL MEDICAL FORM CONFIDENTIAL

This form should be completed, signed and returned to your child's o	class teacher as soon as possible
PROPOSED VISIT/ACTIVITY:	
VENUE:	
DATE(S) OF VISIT ON/FROM: TO:	
STUDENT'S NAME	
EMERGENCY CONTACT – Name of parent/guardian	
HOME ADDRESS:	
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE: daytime: evening:	mobile:
Alternative emergency contact should parents/guardians not be available.	able:
Name: Relationship to child:	
Address:	
telephone:mobile	
NAME AND ADDRESS OF FAMILY DOCTOR	
TELEPHONE NUMBER	
My child suffers from travel sickness YES - I will provide medicagreement to administer medicine form.	cation and complete a Parental
My child has a condition requiring regular medical treatment or medical	cation. YES/NO
If yes, give brief details	
Has your son/daughter suffered from any of the following:-	
Asthma or bronchitis	YES/NO
Fits, fainting or blackouts	YES/NO
Severe headaches	YES/NO
Allergies to any known drugs	YES/NO
Any other allergies e.g. material, food	YES/NO
Recent bed wetting Sleep-walking	YES/NO YES/NO
Anaphylaxis	YES/NO
Is your child suffering from any other illness or disability?	YES/NO

Page 21 of 28 March 2024

Can your child swim? YES/NO Can your child swim with confidence? YES/NO If the answer to any of the questions OVERLEAF is YES, please give details in the space below
(continue on a separate sheet for any medical information which cannot fit in the space above and please attach).
Any recent illness, accident or injury suffered by your child recently, which staff should be aware of:
Has your son/daughter received vaccination against Tetanus in the last ten years? YES/NO
DECLARATION Having been informed through the details supplied, I consent to my child taking part in this activity/trip/visit and this includes consent for him/her to take part in any or all of the activities described.
I understand that all reasonable care will be taken of my child during the visit/activity and that he/she will be under an obligation to follow all directions and instructions given and observe all rules and regulations governing the visit/activity.
I understand that if my child seriously misbehaves or is a cause of danger to him/ herself or to others, then he/she may be sent home early from the visit/activity. In such a situation, there will be no obligation on the school/establishment to refund any money.
I understand the extent and limitations of the insurance cover provided and whilst the establishment staff in charge of the group will take all reasonable care, they cannot necessarily be held responsible for any loss or damage suffered by my son/daughter during the visit. I understand that all visits are covered by public liability insurance and I can contact the school/establishment if I require further details.
I agree to my son/daughter receiving medical care if required. This would include first aid and any emergency dental, medical or surgical treatment as considered necessary by the medical authorities present in the best interest of my child.
Full name of parent or carer (print please):
Signed: Date:

EXPLANATORY NOTES

This form serves several important functions.

- 1. It confirms your knowledge of and your agreement to your child's participation in the planned visit.
- 2. It advises you that the Academy/Insurers will NOT necessarily be legally liable for every type of loss suffered by a child whilst on a visit.
- 3. It contains information about your child together with your consent to medical treatment if required.
- 4. It gives the supervising staff immediate information on how to contact you in an emergency.
- 5. If this form is not returned your child will NOT be able to participate in the visit.
- 6. If you wish to discuss any of the contents of this form please contact the child's Headteacher.
- 7. <u>Data Protection</u>. The data collected by this establishment/ Somerset Local Authority, and The Blackdown Education Partnership as the data controller, will fulfil its data protection obligations by treating all personal data, held manually and on computerised administrative systems with due care and confidentiality. Personal data will only be disclosed in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998, and the purposes registered by The Trust/Somerset County Council. Data collected is used for registration and monitoring purposes, and emergency

Page 22 of 28 March 2024

contact information.

Page 23 of 28 March 2024

EXTERNAL VISIT GUIDANCE for staff

First steps

- Visit Leader must obtain outline approval for the visit from Headteacher.
- Visit Leader should make contact with venue, fully brief themselves on price, rules and requirements. Then, provisionally book the visit and forward booking confirmation to Jo Lilley.
- Visit Leader needs to calculate and arrange adult supervision. This must conform with the recommended adult:child ratio (Reception 1:3-6/Years 1-2 (KS1) 1:6-10/Years 3-6 (KS2) 1:10-12 all minimum of 2 staff and dependent on level of risk).
- Visit Leader must complete all parts of an EV1 form once transport is arranged (copies in staff room/office) and obtain signed approval for visit from Headteacher (at least 4 weeks prior to visit).
 A copy of this should be given to AM promptly.
- Visit Leader must follow External Visit Timeline obtained from school office. <u>This is imperative</u>.
 AM will enter timeline deadlines to school calendar.

Transport

- Visit Leader will need to get quotes from coach companies, if transport is required.
- Visit Leader should give all quotes to Jo Lilley before booking the coach and Jo will calculate payment/set up payment plan for parents.

Letters to parents

- Visit Leader should send a letter to parents (please use previous visit letters as a template) at least 2-3 weeks prior to day visits; 6 months prior to residential visits (giving time to collect deposits/full payment).
 Follow up information letters should be sent 1 week prior to day visits; 2 weeks prior to residential visits.
 - Letters should include the itinerary, names of accompanying staff and coach company, if used; details of all activities; lunch arrangements, if relevant; suitable clothing; water bottle/coats/suncream etc. reminder. It should include a consent slip (except for visits in walking distance of the school) For residential visits, this is obtained on the Medical/Information Consent form.
- Visit Leader must obtain CW approval of all letters before they are sent to parents and must also go
 through the office. Visit Leader is to provide AM with a copy (any payment request will then immediately be
 put on ParentPay).

Visit management

- Visit Leader must create a Visit Plan on the EEC website https://www.eeclive.co.uk/swi (information copied from EV1 form). The request approval button at the bottom of the Basic Detail screen must be pressed for it to be forwarded to the EVC. This must be done at least two weeks prior to visit for Non-Adventurous visits and at least three weeks for Adventurous/Residential visits (as these require Chair of Governor and OEA approval). If you add AM as an administrator in the supervisor tab, this can be edited on your behalf, if required.
- Medication kept in the classroom should be taken on all visits, where necessary.
- Payments/deposits must be checked 3 days prior to the payment deadline and if not received, parents
 must be contacted to secure a decision of the child's participation in the visit. A deadline for whether the
 child is going on the visit must be set and adhered to.
- Children not participating in the visit need to have a timetable/ arrangements made for them for the duration of the visit with work set. A copy of this must be shared with parents/given to supervising staff and AM. Work set must include core subject consolidation work/a mini project/PE provision. To enable PE slots, they may have to swap between groups/classes. These children need to be told to register at the school office am and pm and told where, within school, they will be working. Any medical needs or relevant information for those children remaining in school needs to be passed to supervising staff.

Residential visits only

- All documents for previous years can be found in Word Public/Staff/ Residentials (these can be edited).
- Parents must complete the Medical Information Consent Form (at least 2 weeks prior to visit). It is
 imperative parents know all activities involved before signing their consent. Check this form for any
 medical issues/food allergies that are not on our SIMS system and flag these up with the school

Page 24 of 28 March 2024

- **office.** An Administering Medicine form needs to be given to parents if required. All forms must be collected by class teacher prior to visit. These must be taken on the visit.
- Any medication that needs to be administered must be delivered, to the school office in a named plastic bag, by parents on the morning of the visit, together with the completed Administering Medicine form.

Risk Assessments

- Visit Leader must request risk assessments for all activities from the venue, including current COVID
 measures. These are to be shared with all participating staff, if necessary, and a copy given to AM for
 archiving.
- Class teachers must create individual risk assessments for all children that require one. A paper copy of
 these need to be given to the SENDCo to be signed off, two weeks for day visits; three weeks for
 residentials prior to visit and then shared with parents for their approval. A copy of these needs to be
 given to AM for archiving. All participating staff need to read these prior to the visit.
- Visit leader must request copies of standard risk assessments from AM three weeks prior to the visit
 for reviewing/updating. All participating staff to read assessments and sign confirmation sheet prior to visit.
 These should be returned to AM prior to visit. Yellow copies of risk assessments must be taken on the
 visit.
 - (**For whole school visits**, documentation requiring signing will be put in the staff room one week in advance and collected prior to the morning of the visit so please ensure all participating staff read and sign)

Day before/Day of Visit

- Classroom staff must collect high-viz jackets/a first aid kit/all relevant documentation/coach sick bucket/delivered medication from the school office in good time prior to departure
- Visit leader must sign visit group out at the office/staff signing out book and provide the office with names of children who are remaining on-site

Returning from Visit

- Visit Leader to sign visit group back in at the school office/staff signing in book
- Visit Leader to partake in a visit review with AM to report any incidents/feedback for future reference

Volunteer helpers

Class teachers to ask any volunteer helpers to arrive <u>at the school office</u> 15-20 minutes prior to departure, giving time for them to read/sign risk assessments and collect their high-viz jackets etc.
 (For whole school visits, volunteer helpers will then be directed to join class line up on playground. Visit leader to ensure volunteer helpers are evenly distributed between groups.)

Page 25 of 28 March 2024

Appendix E:

Examples of Category A, B and C Trips

Category A Trips

- Local trips, ie walking into town.
- Trips by minibus and coach (eg visits to other schools, day trips, theatre trips).

Category B Trips

- Any residential trip (in this country or abroad).
- Any adventurous activity (eg dry ski slope, high ropes, mountain biking)
- Ten Tors.

Category C Trips

• Duke of Edinburgh Award Scheme

Page 26 of 28 March 2024

Appendix F:

Key to Relevant Postholders

Wellesley Park School

Headteacher: Carly Wilkins
Cover Co-ordinator: Carly Wilkins
Premises Manager: Brendan Slade

EVC: Annie Matthews / Carly Wilkins

Page 27 of 28 March 2024